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邁達車行有限公司 

EMPIRE MOTOR LIMITED 
  寫字樓 : 新界元朗新田東頭源村約 102地段 2799車場 

通訊處 : 新界元朗新田郵政局信箱 153號 

電話 : 2442 3888 傳真 : 2478 9977 

 

日期:  15 January 2025   

 

 

Town Planning Board 

15/F, North Point Government Office, 

333 Java Road, 

North Point, Hong Kong 

 

先生/女士 : 

     Application  No. A/STT/17 

Temporary Shop and Services (Sales Office for Sale of Goods Vehicles) for a Period of 

3 Years in “Open Storage” zone, Lots 2757 RP (Part), 2758 RP, 2759, 2760, in D.D. 102 

and Adjoining Government Land, Ngau Tam Mei, Yuen Long.    

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

(一)本公司現申請的地點為貨車銷售及展銷場地, 因此場地只提供車輛展銷及買賣,

所以不會提供任何泊車用途, 包括員工及訪客車輛.此地點工作人員大約 3人, 

其中一位是夜更保安員. 

展銷場地放置的車輛數量大致分為: - 

- 1輛重型貨車 

- 2輛中型貨車 

- 3輛輕型貨車 

 

(二)申請地點每天運作時間由上午 8:00 至下午 6:00, 星期日及公眾假期為休息日, 

所以車輛出入此地是非常有限, 每星期大約 4次左右, 因此申請地點車輛流量是 

微不足道, 也不致會對周邊地區交通構成影響, 申請人就上述申請提交申請地點 

的交通流量預算詳細如下: 

 
 
 
 
 











 



 



 



 



⬜Urgent  ⬜Return receipt  ⬜Expand Group  ⬜Restricted  ⬜Prevent Copy  

1

Timothy Yuet Sang CHAN/PLAND

From: Yuen Wa Mak < >  
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 11:39 AM 
To: tpbpd/PLAND <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>; Karen Kei Yee CHAN/PLAND <kkychan2@pland.gov.hk> 
Subject: A/STT/17 
 
致：城規會 
 
就本公司辦公室地基結構問題現作出以下回覆： 
  
1. 本公司的辦公室是用了兩個貨櫃建兩層（約4.85米高）及頂上設有約5.3米高雨棚，放在地面上作臨時
用途，並不涉及任何地底/地基發展。貴署亦可參考我司之前遞交的佈局圖。有關發展為臨時用途，不
會影響北環線發展項目。 
  
2. 在之前遞交的申請表上註明了車輛每星期出入4次左右，車流量並不高。另外，在往後日子本公司會
盡量配合有關北環線的興建工程，如有需要，本公司會與有關部門保持密切溝通。 
  
 
 
 
Eva Mak 
Empire Motor Limited 

20-Feb-2025 
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Relevant Extracts of Town Planning Board Guidelines for
Application for Open Storage and Port Back-up Uses

under Section 16 of the Town Planning Ordinance (TPB PG-No. 13G)

On 14.4.2023, the Town Planning Board Guidelines for Application for Open Storage and Port
Back-up Uses under Section 16 of the Town Planning Ordinance (TPB PG-No. 13G) were
promulgated, which set out the following criteria for New Development Areas (NDAs):

(a) The planning for various NDAs (including potential development areas) in the New
Territories has been in progress and the land use proposals for some of these areas have
been incorporated as appropriate into relevant statutory town plans. The NDAs will be
implemented by phases. While it is envisaged that the existing open storage and port back-
up uses in these areas will be gradually phased out, sympathetic consideration may be given
to applications for continued operation of these uses during the interim period before the
sites are required for NDA development.

(b) For existing open storage and port back-up sites with previous planning approval(s) and/or
permitted under the previous OZPs, sympathetic consideration may be given to the
application (irrespective of whether the application is submitted by the applicant of
previous approval or a different applicant) until the concerned site is required for
implementation of NDA development, provided that the relevant approval conditions, if
any, have been complied with. Technical assessments, where appropriate, may also need
to be submitted to demonstrate that the continued operation of the current uses would not
have adverse drainage, traffic, visual, landscaping and environmental impacts on the
surrounding areas and the concerns of the departments and local residents, if any, can be
addressed through the implementation of the approval conditions.

(c) In view of the impending implementation of NDAs, new open storage and port back-up
uses are generally not encouraged to infiltrate into the NDAs. However, sympathetic
consideration may be given to applications for relocation of the uses/operations affected by
government projects to sites designated for development purpose in NDAs (including those
planned for GIC and open space developments) as temporary use/ development before
these sites are required for NDA development, subject to policy support given by the
relevant policy bureau(x) to the application and no adverse departmental comments and
local objections, or the concerns could be addressed by approval conditions. There is a
general presumption against such uses at greenfield areas and/or at sites with land use
compatibility issue, e.g. in close proximity to existing residential dwellings which may be
subject to environmental nuisances caused by the open storage and port back-up uses.
Applications will normally be rejected unless under exceptional circumstances.

(d) Any approved temporary use and development should not jeopardize the long-term planned
development on the respective site/the surrounding area under the NDA and the applicant
should be advised that the site would be required by the government at any time during the
planning approval period for implementation of government projects.



Appendix III of RNTPC
Paper No. A/STT/17

Previous s.16 Applications covering the Application Site

Approved Applications

No. Application No. Use(s)/Development(s) Date of Consideration
(RNTPC)

1. A/YL-NTM/96 Lorry and Container Trailer Park 25.8.2000
(3 Years)

2. A/YL-NTM/163 Temporary Storage of Goods Vehicles for Sale
with Sales Office for a Period of 3 Years

12.3.2004

3. A/YL-NTM/228* Temporary Shop and Services (Sales Office for
Sale of Goods Vehicles) for a Period of 3 Years

5.9.2008
[revoked on 5.12.2009]

4 A/YL-NTM/252 Temporary Shop and Services (Sales Office for
Sale of Goods Vehicles) For a Period of 3 Years

28.5.2010

5. A/YL-NTM/291 Temporary Shop and Services (Sales Office for
Sale of Goods Vehicles) For a Period of 3 Years

7.6.2013

6. A/YL-NTM/336* Renewal of Planning Approval for Temporary
Shop and Services (Sales Office for Sale of
Goods Vehicles) for a Period of 3 Years

27.5.2016
(1 Year)

[revoked on 8.12.2016]

7. A/YL-NTM/344* Temporary Shop and Services (Sales Office for
Sale of Goods Vehicles) for a Period of 3 Years

14.7.2017
[revoked on 14.7.2019]

8. A/YL-NTM/413 Temporary Shop and Services (Sales Office for
Sale of Goods Vehicles) for a Period of 3 Years

16.4.2021

* denotes permission revoked
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Government Departments’ General Comments

1. Land Administration

Comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department:

� no adverse comment on the planning application;

� the application site (the Site) comprises Government Land (GL) and Old Schedule
Agricultural Lots 2757RP, 2758RP, 2759 and 2760 in D.D.102 under the Block
Government Lease which contains the restriction that no structures are allowed to be
erected without the prior approval of the Government;

� the private lots are covered by Short Term Waivers (STWs) as below:
STW No. Lot No. (in D.D. 102) Purposes

3761 2759 Temporary Shop and Services (Sales
Office for Sale of Goods Vehicles)3762 2760

� the GL within the Site (about 21m2 as mentioned in the application form) has been
fenced off / unlawfully occupied with unauthorised structure(s) without any permission.
Any occupation of GL without Government’s prior approval is an offence under Cap.
28. His office reserves the rights to take necessary land control action against the
unlawfully occupation of Government land without further notice; and

� advisory comments are detailed in Appendix V.

2. Traffic

Comments of the Commissioner for Transport:

� noting that the current application has the same use, same development parameters,
such as the number of parking spaces, as the previous application (Application No.
A/YL-NTM/413) except with a smaller site area, she has no comment to the application
from traffic engineering point of view; and

� advisory comments are detailed in Appendix V.

3. Environment

Comments from the Director of Environmental Protection:

� the applied use will provide three parking spaces for light goods vehicles (LGVs),  two
for medium goods vehicles (MGVs) and one for heavy goods vehicle (HGV);

� considering the “Code of Practice on Handling the Environmental Aspects of
Temporary Uses and Open Storage Sites” (CoP), it is noted that the applied use would
involve (a) traffic of heavy vehicle (i.e. MGVs and HGVs), but not involve (b) dusty
operations.  The nearest residential premise is about 223m to the west of the Site.
Although there are nearby temporary structures, they are not considered as residential
buildings under the CoP;
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� based on the above, he has no objection to the application from environmental planning
perspective;

� there was no environmental complaint related to the Site in the past three years; and

� advisory comments are detailed in Appendix V.

4. Landscape

Comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning Department:

� the Site falls within an area mainly zoned “Government, Institution or Community” (i.e.
a non-landscape sensitive zoning) with minor portion within an area shown as ‘Road’
on the approved San Tin Technopole Outline Zoning Plan No. S/STT/2.  No significant
landscape impact arising from the applied use is anticipated; and

� advisory comments are detailed in Appendix V.

5. Drainage

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services Department (DSD):

� no in-principle objection to the planning application from drainage operation and
maintenance point of view;

� the applicant implemented the drainage facilities at the Site under previous approved
planning application No. A/YL-NTM/413. The current application maintains the same
use as the previous application.  In this regard, the applicant should provide with a set
of reference photographs, clearly marking the corresponding locations on the approved
drainage plan after the completion of drainage works. DSD will conduct a joint site
inspection with the applicant;

� all the proposed drainage facilities should be constructed and maintained by the
applicant at his own cost.  The applicant should ensure and keep all drainage works on
site under proper maintenance at all times; and

� advisory comments are detailed in Appendix V.

6. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services:

� no in-principle objection to the application subject to fire service installations (FSIs)
being provided to his satisfaction;

� in consideration of the design/nature of the proposal, FSIs are anticipated to be required.
Therefore, the applicant is advised to submit relevant layout plans incorporated with
the proposed FSIs to his department for approval; and

� advisory comments are detailed in Appendix V.
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7. Other Departments

The following government departments have no objection to/no adverse comment on the
application and their advisory comments, if any, are in Appendix V:

(a) Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation;
(b) Chief Estate Surveyor/Acquisition, Lands Department;
(c) Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development Department (CEDD);
(d) Head of Geotechnical Engineering Office, CEDD;
(e) Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highway Department (HyD);
(f) Chief Engineer/Railway Development 1-1, Railway Development Office, HyD;
(g) Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department;
(h) Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department;
(i) Commissioner of Police; and
(j) District Officer (Yuen Long), Home Affairs Department.
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Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) The application site (the Site) falls within the boundary of the San Tin Technopole.  The
Site may be resumed by the Government and the applied use at the Site may be terminated
at any time during the planning approval period for implementation of Government
projects;

(b) prior planning permission should have been obtained before commencing the applied use
at the Site;

(c) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department
(DLO/YL, LandsD) that:

� the Government Land (GL) within the Site (about 21m2 as mentioned in the
application form) has been fenced off/unlawfully occupied with unauthorised
structure(s) without any permission.  Any occupation of GL without Government’s
prior approval is an offence under Cap. 28.  His office reserves the rights to take
necessary land control action against the unlawfully occupation of GL without
further notice; and

� the Short Term Waiver (STW) holder(s) will need to apply to his office for
modification of the STW conditions where appropriate and the lot owner(s) shall
apply to his office for a STW and/or Short Term Tenancy (STT) to permit the
structure(s) erected within the said private lot(s) and the occupation of GL.  The
application(s) for STW/STT will be considered by the Government in its capacity
as a landlord and there is no guarantee that they will be approved.  The
application(s), if approved, will be subject to such terms and conditions including
the payment of waiver fee/rent and administrative fee as considered appropriate by
LandsD.  Besides, given the applied use is temporary in nature, only erection of
temporary structure(s) will be considered;

(d) to note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport that:

� the applicant should ensure that there would be sufficient spaces allowed for vehicle
manoeuvring such that no vehicles would queue back to or reverse onto/from public
road at any time during the planning approval period;

(e) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department (HyD) that:

� the Site involves GL where is not under HyD’s maintenance purview;

� the proposed access arrangement of the Site should be commented and approved by
the Transport Department;

� HyD shall not be responsible for the maintenance of the proposed access, if any,
connecting the Site to Kwu Tung Road; and

� adequate drainage measures shall be provided to prevent surface water running from
the Site to the nearby public roads and drains;
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(f) to note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Railway Development 1-1, Railway
Development Office, HyD that:

� the proposed office structure of the applied use is located above the Northern Link
(NOL) Main Line tunnel as presented on the gazetted scheme of the NOL Main
Line. The effect due to tunnel boring machines tunnel works below the office
structure of the applied use shall be considered;

(g) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP) that:

� sewage discharge from the Site should be directed to nearby public sewer. In case
of unavailability of public sewer, proper sewage collection and treatment facilities
should be provided in accordance with the requirements in Professional Persons
Environmental Consultative Committee Practice Note (ProPECC PN) 1/23. All
effluent discharges from the applied use are subject to control under Water Pollution
Control Ordinance; and

� the applicant is advised to follow the environmental mitigation measures and
requirements in the latest “Code of Practice on Handling the Environmental Aspects
of Temporary Uses and Open Storage Sites” issued by the Environmental Protection
Department;

(h) to note the comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning
Department that:

� there are existing trees along the western boundary of the Site. Approval of the
application does not imply approval of tree works such as pruning, transplanting
and felling. Application for any tree works should be submitted direct to relevant
authority(ies) for approval;

(i) to note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services
Department (DSD) that:

� the applicant shall ascertain that all existing flow paths would be properly
intercepted and maintained without increasing the flooding risk of the adjacent area.
As existing drains are running through the Site, the application shall ensure that the
flow remains unobstructed during the period;

� the applicant is reminded that the proposed drainage proposal/works as well as the
Site boundary should not cause encroachment upon areas outside his jurisdiction;

� no public sewerage maintained by DSD is currently available for connection. For
sewage disposal and treatment, agreement from the DEP shall be obtained;

� the applicant should consult DLO/YL, LandsD regarding all the proposed drainage
works outside the lot boundary in order to ensure the unobstructed discharge from
the Site in future; and

� all the proposed drainage facilities should be constructed and maintained by the
applicant at his own cost. The applicant should ensure and keep all drainage works
on site under proper maintenance at all times;
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(j) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services that:

� the applicant should submit relevant layout plans incorporated with the proposed
fire service installations (FSIs) to his Department for approval.  The layout plans
should be drawn to scale and depicted with dimensions and nature of occupancy,
and the location of the proposed FSIs to be installed should be clearly marked on
the layout plans; and

� if the proposed structure(s) is required to comply with the Buildings Ordinance (BO)
(Cap. 123), detailed fire service requirements will be formulated upon receipt of
formal submission of general building plans;

(k) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that:

� there is no record of approval granted by the Building Authority (BA) for the
existing structures at the Site;

� it is noted that two structures are proposed in the application. Before any new
building works (including containers/open sheds as temporary buildings, demolition
and land filling, etc.) are to be carried out on the Site, prior approval and consent of
BA should be obtained, otherwise they are unauthorized building works (UBW)
under the BO.  An Authorized Person should be appointed as the co-ordinator for
the proposed building works in accordance with the BO;

� the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and
emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the
Building (Planning) Regulations (B(P)R) respectively;

� the Site does not abut on a specified street of not less than 4.5m wide and its
permitted development intensity shall be determined under Regulation 19(3) of the
B(P)R at the building plan submission stage;

� if the existing structures are erected on leased land without the approval of the BA,
they are UBW under BO and should not be designated for any proposed use under
the application;

� for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by BD to effect
their removal in accordance with the prevailing enforcement policy against UBW
as and when necessary.  The granting of any planning approval should not be
construed as an acceptance of any existing building works or UBW on the Site under
the BO;

� any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or
other uses are considered as temporary buildings are subject to the control of Part
VII of the B(P)R; and

� detailed checking under the BO will be carried out at building plan submission stage.


